
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Audit Committee 

 
Date: Friday 18 December 2020 
 
Time:  10:30am 
 
Place: To be held remotely via Zoom and live-streamed to: 

https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business: 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Kate Morris Direct Dial: 0115 876 4353 
 

   
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2020, for confirmation 
 

3 - 10 

4  Work Programme and Action Log  
 

11 - 14 

5  Report in the Public Interest - Appointment of Councillor Directors  
Report of the Director for Legal and Governance 
 

15 - 20 

6  'No Deal' Brexit Planning  
Report of the Chief Executive and Director for Legal and Governance 
 

21 - 28 

7  Exclusion of the Public  
To consider excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining item(s) in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
 

 

8  Exempt Minutes  
Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2020, for 
confirmation 
 

29 - 32 

Public Document Pack



Councillors, co-optees, colleagues and other participants must declare all 
disclosable pecuniary and other interests relating to any items of business to be 
discussed at the meeting. If you need any advice on declaring an interest in an item 
on the agenda, please contact the Governance Officer shown above before the day 
of the meeting, if possible. 
 
Any recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the 
Council’s policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available 
at: https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-
meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings/. 

https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings/
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/council-meetings-decisions/recording-reporting-on-public-meetings/


Nottingham City Council  
Audit Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Zoom and live-streamed on YouTube 
on Friday 27 November 2020 from 10:32am to 12:46pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Audra Wynter (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Ayoola (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Graham Chapman 
Councillor Michael Edwards 
Councillor Jay Hayes 
Councillor Jane Lakey 
Councillor Sajid Mohammed 
Councillor Anne Peach 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
 

None 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Mel Barrett - Chief Executive 
Theresa Channell - Head of Strategic Finance 
Glyn Daykin - Senior Accountant Treasury Management 
John Gregory - Grant Thornton External Auditors 
Clive Heaphy - Interim Director of Strategic Finance 
Sue Risdall - Team Leader, Technical Finance 
Shail Shah - Head of Audit and Risk 
John Slater - Group Auditor 
Kate Morris - Governance Officer 
 
43  Apologies 

 
None. 
 
44  Declarations of Interest 

 
None. 
 
45  Minutes 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2020 were confirmed as a true 
record and were signed by the Chair.  
 
46  Work Programme and Action Log 

 
Shail Shar, Head of Audit and Risk, introduced the Work Programme and Action Log 
to the Audit Committee. He informed the Committee that the work plan was being 
constantly adjusted in consultation with the Chair to ensure all aspects of work were 
covered.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

Committee Members asked that the item on Brexit be brought forward to an 
additional meeting in December and that the Ethics and Culture item that was 
previously on the work plan be reinstated.  
 
The Committee noted the Work Plan and the Action Log. 
 
47  Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government Rapid Non 

Statutory Review of Nottingham City Council 
 

Mel Barrett, Chief Executive, introduced the report giving a brief update on the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) rapid non-
statutory review of Nottingham City Council. He highlighted the following points:  
 

(a) The review has been underway for about a month and a report is due to be 
issued the week commencing 30 November 2020. It was commissioned by the 
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government following 
the recent Report in the Public Interest by the Council’s external auditor Grant 
Thornton, and has been looking at the governance and decision making of the 
Council, as well as the Council’s financial stability and its capacity to improve. 
Max Caller CBE was appointed as the Lead Reviewer alongside 2 Assistant 
Reviewers;  
 

(b) There are a number of different potential outcomes to the review, but once the 
report has been published it will be circulated to all members of the Council 
and a report in the outcomes can come back to a future meeting of this 
Committee. 

 
During discussion and questions, the following points were made: 
 
(c) The Council will need to be aware that the skills needed by a company director 

are often those that also make a good Audit Committee member. The 
separating out of those two roles may be difficult due to the small pool of 
people with that particular skill set may be difficult or detrimental;  
 

(d) Concerns around Councillor control of businesses will not be solved by 
bringing them in-house. One case where this may be beneficial has been 
identified. A better understanding of conflict of interests when they arise may 
be a better solution. 

 
The committee noted the report and information on the MHCLG rapid non-statutory 
review and that a report with the outcome will come to a future meeting of this 
Committee. 
 
48  Report in the Public Interest and Action Plan - Update 

 
Beth Brown, Head of Legal and Governance, introduced the report updating the 
Committee on work undertaken to date on the action plan resulting from the Public 
Interest report. The following points were highlighted during discussion of this item: 
 

Page 4



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

(a) Over half of the 62 actions identified were due for completion by the end of 
November and the work is on track to meet these deadlines. There is no 
slippage in the work programme to report;   
 

(b) Additional actions completed include the establishment of a Programme 
Delivery Board to implement the actions, establishment of the Governance 
Improvement Board with independent members, lead officers identified and 
work streams established, 11 actions have been signed off and a best practice 
library has been created; 
 

(c) A report on the review of composition of company boarsd will be brought to the 
December meeting of the Audit Committee in time for it to go to Council in 
January 2021 in line with the action plan; 
 

(d) Training needs to equip Councillors to fulfil their role. Existing training 
programmes are being enhanced with some additional subjects becoming 
compulsory. The Council is also working with external bodies to develop 
training further;  
 

(e) The report puts a lot of emphasis on the Member role and training and does 
not put so much emphasis on the Officer role or Officer training.  Culture within 
Officers will not be addressed by Member training and processes. There has 
been a substantial change in culture in recent months but it is essential that 
the risk of returning to the previous culture is understood and mitigated 
through training;  
 

(f) Officer training is being addressed along with other improving other processes 
such as decision making and report writing; 
 

(g) Culture is important. It is necessary keep separate the role of the Officers 
flagging issues and situations where internal controls are beginning to fail and 
the role of Councillors in ensuring proper monitoring is taking place and to put 
focus on those situations that require it, ensuring actions are set in train where 
appropriate;  
 

(h) Within the PIR the process issues are easier to evidence and make specific 
recommendation around. Evidencing culture issues and establishing their 
cause is far more difficult. It is the hope of the External Auditor that the 
MHCLG review will support and widen out the debate around cultural issues 
across the Council. 
 

Resolved to note the work undertaken to date and progress towards 
implementation of the action plan. 
 
49  External Audit Update 

 
John Gregory, External Auditor, gave a verbal update on the progress of the external 
audit processes. The highlighted the following points: 
 

(a) The final opinion on the 18/19 Accounts is still outstanding. As a result of 
Covid 19 pandemic and the increased risk it presents to all businesses and 

Page 5



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

organisations more work is required which is the cause of the delay. The 
findings of the Audit as presented to this committee previously have not 
changed;  
 

(b) The 18/19 Value for Money conclusion is still outstanding and external 
auditors are currently awaiting the outcome of the MHCLG review to be 
completed and the report made public before finalising the conclusion; 
 

(c) The deadline for opinion on the 19/20 accounts has been pushed back to 30 
November 2020, but will not be met in particular due to the impact of Covid-19 
on the Council’s group companies. There are two companies where their 
auditors opinion has not yet been submitted. Grant Thornton are in 
communication with these auditors to obtain their opinions. A meeting has 
been held with Max Caller concerning the MHCLG review’s view of the 
financial position for 20/21 and sustainability going forward. 

 
During comments and questions from the committee, the following additional 
points were made:  
 
(d) In a normal year the late publication of accounts would be concerning as it is a 

statutory deadline, however this year, as a result of the Covid pandemic, it is 
likely that many local authorities will miss this deadline. However Nottingham 
City Council will be able to publish the accounts with a clarification note 
indicating the opinion of the Auditor is still required. There will be no direct 
implications for the Council. The main issue causing delay is the complexity of 
the Council’s situation;  
 

(e) The outstanding accounts are from Robin Hood Energy and EnviroEnergy, 
finance officers are working with their auditors; 
 

(f) The Value for Money opinion will be coming to the January 2021 Audit 
Committee.  
 

The committee noted the content of the update from the External Auditor. 
 
50  Companies Financial Governance Framework 

 
Bipon Bhakri, Head of Finance – Commercial & Projects gave a presentation to the 
Committee on the Companies Financial Governance Framework outlining the risk 
management work around group companies. He highlighted the following points:  
 

(a) The governance framework is monitored through the Companies Governance 
Sub Committee (CGSC) and consists of three strands: 

 Financial Management 

 Business Management 

 Risk Management 
 

(b) In terms of Financial Management, each month the group companies submit a 
report on their financial position to the CGSC, these reports include 
information on profitability, cash balances and any variances identified.  The 
companies also report their Medium Term Financial plans (MTFP) to the Sub 

Page 6



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

Committee and the implications this has for the Council are assessed. There 
will also be financial management training available to the committee 
members;  

 
(c) The second area, business management, includes the development of a group 

business strategy and business performance; 
 

(d) There are shareholder representatives who attend on a quarterly basis to 
provide a report on the business positon and governance and business 
performance to assure the council around protection of its investment and 
maximisation of returns; 
 

(e) Each company also provides the Sub Committee with business strategies, 
future plans and trading prospects alongside financial information; 
 

(f) Risk management at the Sub Committee includes a combined risk register, 
with items drawn from each company’s individual risk register to obtain a 
group position, a group risk plan detailing parameters within which the 
companies are operating and how risk is managed, alongside specific training 
around risk management;   
 

(g) The Company Risk review process has a number of steps, initially the 
Company Board reviews and sign off their own key risks. There are regular 
meetings between the Council and Companies around identified risks and 
performance. This is then fed into an internal meeting with the finance and risk 
colleagues to establish how these risks impact on the Council and the 
Council’s risk via the Finance Risk register; 
 

(h) The Strategic Finance Director reviews these risks to decide if there is any 
need to escalate them and what they mean to the Council’s risk and financial 
position. These risks are finally presented to the CGSC in the monthly review, 
actions are identified and reported back to the companies to mitigate or 
manage the risk;  
 

(i) The 9 Group companies all have their own independent external auditors. Key 
lines of work considered during the Audits are:  

 Impact of Covid 19 and the material uncertainty of the business 
environment 

 Going concern 

 Internal control frameworks, and 

 Management override 
 

(j) The auditors findings are presented to the company as part of the end of year 
accounts process board and any material issues are for that board to follow 
up. They are then fed into the CGSC to ensure that a suitable work 
programme for the Sub Committee is in place encompassing appropriate 
support. 

 
During discussion and questions the following points were raised: 
 

Page 7



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

(k) The structure presented would benefit from Shareholder meetings, and 
strategic joint working that allow strategic issues to be discussed with the 
Council’s lead officer, Company and relevant Portfolio Holder present and 
ensure shared aims are being delivered. The Sub Committee is not the 
appropriate place for those discussions and a shareholder meeting with the 
company would allow that work to happen. This mechanism would also ensure 
that the Shareholder report to the CGSC contained a full picture;  
 
 

(l) A Committee member raised concerns around the difficulty in embedding risk 
management into the ways of working and regular reporting. Finance and Risk 
reporting/management sit together and should work together to feed into 
monthly reporting;  
 

(m)The Director of Strategic Finance will expect to see a shareholder report 
supported by analysis of key risks, any potential for company distress will then 
be visible enabling action. Once the framework is embedded information will 
be fed into the CGSC which will allow the Council to identify if a company is 
entering a distressed state. This can then be used to make members aware 
and action to be taken. It will take a little time for this to become a systematic 
approach but will benefit companies and the Council. 
 

Resolved to: 
 

(1) Note the use of the Companies Financial Governance Framework to 
support its risk management of the group companies; and  
 

(2) Note the Group Risk Register and its connection to the City Council 
Finance Risk Register. 

 
51  Audit Committee Working Groups 

 
Shail Shah, Head of Audit and Risk, introduced the report on establishing working 
groups of the Audit Committee. He emphasised that these would be informal working 
groups, and would not perform any part of the statutory work of the Audit Committee.  
 
As these are informal working groups relevant officers will be invited to attend and 
contribute. 
 
Finalised terms of reference for each working group to include frequency and scope 
will come back to a future Audit committee to be noted.  
 
Resolved to establish the following working groups and membership: 

 Capital and Commercial: 
o Cllr Leslie Ayoola 
o Cllr Graham Chapman 
o Cllr Jane Lakey 
o Cllr Andrew Rule 
o Cllr Audra Wynter 
o Cllr Michael Edwards 

 

Page 8



Audit Committee – 27.11.20 

 Anti-fraud, anti-bribery, and anti-corruption: 
o Cllr Graham Chapman 
o Cllr Jay Hayes  
o Cllr Andrew Rule 
o Cllr Audra Wynter 

 

 Risk and Assurance 
o Cllr Graham Chapman 
o Cllr Michael Edwards 
o Cllr Sajid Mohammed 
o Cllr Audra Wynter  
o Cllr Anne Peach 

 
52  Additional Meeting Date 

 
Resolved to meeting on the following additional dates at 10.30am: 
 
18 December 2020 
29 January 2021 
 
53  Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the 
remaining item(s) in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the circumstances, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:00pm and reconvened at 12.10pm. 
 
54  Exempt Minutes 

 
The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2020 were confirmed as a 
true record and were signed by the Chair.  
 
55  Companies Financial Governance Framework 

 
The Committee considered the exempt appendix. 
 
Resolved to note the External Audit Findings reports for the companies. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

Audit Committee Work Programme & Action Log 
 

Proposed Work Programme 

2020   

Dec – training session (separate meeting) 
- Risk training 8Dec 

  

Dec   
Brexit   
Report in the Public Interest: Appointment of Councillor Directors   

2021   
Jan (meeting tbc) – move to Feb 

Non-Executive Amendments to the Constitution 
Audit Committee Terms of Reference & Work Programme 

Jan - Audit Committee Training (separate meeting tbc)  

  

- Financial Accounts Training 29Jan tbc   
Feb   

Report in the Public Interest update & MHCLG Non-Statutory  
                                                                                 Review Report 

  

Statement of Accounts 2019-20 
Final AGS 2019-20 & 2020-21 process 

  

External Audit Reports and plan 
Treasury Management & Capital Strategy and Treasury  
                                                                   Management Half Year 

  

Internal Audit Update   
Information Governance & Information Security Annual Assurance   

Mar   
Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
Brexit Update   
Non-Executive Amendments to the Constitution   
Council Plan & Corporate Performance Assurance 
Partnership Governance Framework & Annual Health Checks 

  

2021   

Mar (continued)   
Review of Accounting Policies 2020/21   
Health & Safety Annual Assurance   

Apr / May   
Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
Risk Management & Corporate Risk Register Update 
Companies Governance update 
Covid-19 & Emergency Plan Review 
Culture & Ethics 

  

Audit Committee Terms of Reference & Work Programme   
Equality & HR Assurance   

Jun   
Accounts Update & Draft Statement of Accounts 2020-21 
Interim AGS 2020-21 

  

Treasury Management Annual Report   
Governance and Accountability of 3rd Party Arrangements   
Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
EMSS Annual Report   

Jul   
Audit Committee Annual Report   
Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
IA Annual Report & Opinion including   
Counter Fraud Strategy & Whistleblowing Policy 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

2021   

Sep    
External Audit Report 
Statement of Accounts 2020-21 
Final AGS 2020-21 

  

Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
Customer Experience/Complaints  
                                     & Ombudsman Annual Assurance 

  

Nov   

Report in the Public Interest & MHCLG Review update   
Treasury Management Half Year   
Partnership Governance Framework & Annual Health Checks   
Internal Audit Update   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 
   
   
   
   

   
   

P
age 12



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

Action Log 
 

Date of meeting Issue Action taken  Target 
Date 

RAG Rating 

25 Sep 20 Sub groups Report to November meeting Complete  

 PIR Update to every meeting Each 
meeting 

 

 Training Risk training 8Dec Complete  

Accounts training 29Jan tbc January  

General Audit Committee training dates tbc (PIR action) January  

Treasury management training 27 Nov Complete  

 AGS  To be considered as part of finalisation process and final 
report expected Feb 2021 

February  

 Whistleblowing Obligation to report is in Employee Code of Conduct Complete  

27 Nov 20 Brexit Report to December meeting December  

 Culture & Ethics Report to April meeting April  

     
 

  

    
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

P
age 13



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 14



 

 

Audit Committee – 18 December 2020 
 

 

Title of paper: Report in the Public Interest - Appointment of Councillor Directors 

 
Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Malcolm Townroe – Director of Legal 
and Governance 
 

Wards affected: All 
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Daniel Ayrton – Business Development Manager 
daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Beth Brown – Head of Legal and Governance 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 That Audit Committee note the work undertaken so far on the review of the use of 
Councillors on company boards. 
 

2 That Audit Committee provide any comment they may have for inclusion in the final 
review due to be considered by Full Council in January 2021. 
 

 
1 Reasons for recommendations 

1.1 Recommendation 1: The Action Plan produced in response to the report of the 
External Auditor issued in the public interest committed that an audit and review of 
NCC’s approach to councillor membership of each subsidiary company board and any 
other similar organisations NCC Councillors are appointed to, will be undertaken. This 
report seeks the views of Audit Committee on the review so far, with assurances that 
comments from the Committee will be included in the review considered by Council in 
January 2021. 

1.2 Recommendation 2: On 9 November 9 2020, Council approved a revision to the 
existing Action Plan that stipulated the above review work be presented for 
recommendations and comment to the next Audit Committee meeting before the 
Report’s formal consideration by Council in January 2021. 

2 Background 

2.1 The review identified all companies in which Nottingham City Council has an interest, 
based on internal records of appointments. These were cross referenced with 
Companies House records to provide a list of companies, the relationship to NCC, 
current NCC directors (Councillors and Officers), non-NCC directors and the 
provisions of their articles of association with regard to director appointments. 

2.2 This list also identified the area of business activity of each company. 

2.3 Each company was classified as being either within a) the primary scope – subsidiary 
companies, b) the secondary scope – companies with directors acting for and on 
behalf of Nottingham City Council, or c) out of scope – inactive companies or 
companies that no longer have directors acting for and on behalf of Nottingham City 
Council. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

 

2.4 In parallel, a review of best practice guidance has been undertaken, including previous 
work commissioned by Audit Committee and completed in 2018. A best practice 
library has been created pulling together 23 separate documents produced by a range 
of external bodies. 

2.5 These documents cover a range of issues relating to Corporate Governance, Local 
Authority and Public Sector Governance, and specific guidance relating to the 
governance of Local Authority controlled companies. This includes guidance on the 
role and requirements of executive and non-executive directors in general, the 
practice and key considerations of appointing Councillors as directors, and best 
practice in managing potential conflicts of interest. 

2.6 Of particular relevance; the Lawyers in Local Government Governance of Council 
Interests in Companies Codes, the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, the Grant 
Thornton Review of Company Governance at Birmingham City Council and the Grant 
Thornton report on alternative service delivery models in local government.  

3 Ongoing review 

3.1 The establishment of an Executive Sub-Committee to oversee the business of Council 
owned companies is consistent with best practice. Committees of this kind are 
typically expected to consolidate the rights and powers of the Council as shareholder 
or (in the case of companies limited by guarantee) member. 

3.2 In order to ensure the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee is able to 
exercise the full powers of shareholder over all matters they wish to reserve including 
the appointment and removal of directors, it is recommended that the articles of 
association of all subsidiary companies be reviewed and, where necessary, amended. 
Members of the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee could consider 
recommending that the work to put in place Shareholder agreements between the 
Council and each of its subsidiary companies limited by shares be expedited and 
undertake the work necessary to fulfil the auditors recommendation. 

3.3 The establishment of robust controls for the shareholder may afford the Council a 
greater degree of influence over a company’s strategic and policy objectives than 
direct engagement at a board level does, albeit with less immediacy. 

3.4 A review of the articles of association for all subsidiary companies has been 
undertaken as part of this work. This initial review has found five of the eight 
subsidiary companies whose articles do not exclusively reserve the right of 
appointment to Nottingham City Council as shareholder. These are: 

 Company  Appointment 

Nottingham Ice Centre Limited Directors may appoint without approval of 
members. Directors have some veto 
power over shareholder appointments. 

Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Ltd Model articles post 2009 meaning 
appointment does not require 
shareholder consent. 

Nottingham Science Park Management 
Company Ltd 

Model articles pre 2009 no change to 
appointments. 

Robin Hood Energy Limited Directors or shareholders may appoint 

Page 16



 

 

board. Appointments do not require 
shareholder consent however 
shareholder has right to remove. 

Thomas Bow Limited Model articles post 2009 no change to 
appointments. 

 

3.5 The review has found no reason that Councillors should not serve as board members, 
however further consideration could be given to the use of independent directors.   

3.6 Executive Councillors appointed to director positions have a legal requirement that 
they do not participate in any Council decisions in relation to the company on which 
they serve. In particular, this requirement could effectively prevent the majority of 
Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee members from participating in 
decisions that affect the entire group of Council-owned companies. Potentially, this 
could significantly impact the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee in 
fulfilling its current stated purpose. 

3.7 For the reasons given above, Executive Councillors could choose to not serve as 
members of subsidiary boards where the functions of the organisation in question falls 
within the remit of their portfolio of responsibilities. Further consideration should also 
be given to the premise that no Executive Councillor who is also a member of the 
Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee should serve on the board of a 
subsidiary company. 

3.8 Consideration is being given to the relationship of the Procurement and 
Commissioning Executive Sub-Committee to NCC companies where contracts are 
awarded for the supply of services. This element of the review has not been 
concluded at this stage. 

4 Board Composition 

4.1 Of the eight companies falling within the primary scope of the review, four had boards 
comprised of between 25% and 37.5% NCC appointed Directors. These are: 

 NCH 

 NCT 

 Nottingham Ice Centre 

 Thomas Bow 

4.2 The boards of the other four are either comprised entirely of NCC appointees or in the 
case of Nottingham Revenue and Benefits, four out of six NCC appointees and one 
former NCC Councillor and one former NCC employee. These are: 

 Nottingham Revenue and Benefits 

 Enviroenergy 

 Robin Hood Energy  

Page 17



 

 

 Nottingham Science Park Management 

4.3 NCC subsidiaries have less than 50% of the board voting rights in the case of three of 
these companies. In some cases for example, Nottingham City Transport, which has 
four NCC appointees (all Councillors) out of 12 current directors, there are limitations 
set in sector specific legislation – in this case the Transport Act 1985.  

4.4 Where the required level of industry specific skills and experience are not available for 
the Council, it should seek to recruit appropriately qualified Independent Non-
Executive Directors to ensure the management of the company are held to account. 

4.5 Lawyers in Local Government have produced a governance code of best practice 
guidance note that highlights the possible applications including; ensuring sufficient 
standards of operational governance, legal and company secretarial compliance and 
effective financial management within the company are adhered to by reserving the 
right to insist that it provide those services to the company. 

4.6 Agreements are currently in place between NCC and two of its non-subsidiary 
companies; a management agreement with Futures and a shareholder agreement 
with Blueprint. The text of a shareholder agreement for NCC subsidiaries has also 
been produced, and whilst discussions with companies are ongoing, this has not been 
adopted by any company to date. The significant variations between the activities and 
aims of the eight subsidiaries are incompatible with a singular standard agreement 
and in this respect some degree of tailoring is required.  

5 Councillors as Directors 

5.1 Where NCC has appointed directors to company boards, they are overwhelmingly 
drawn from the elected members rather than Council Officers, with two Officer 
appointments out of 25 NCC appointees. Of those Councillor directorships, eight are 
held by Executive Councillors, three of whom are members of the Companies’ 
Governance Executive Sub-Committee. 

5.2 The Lawyers in Local Government governance code of best practice guidance note 
states that “whilst it will therefore be the norm that officers, not members, will be 
appointed as directors, this should not prevent the Council from appointing Members 
as directors where that is considered to be in the best interests of the company and 
the Council.” 

5.3 Similarly, the 2016 Grant Thornton review of group governance at Birmingham City 
Council included in its recommendations that “entity boards will remain a combination 
of elected members and Non-Executive Directors.” 

5.4 In both cases however, the guidance highlights the inability of Councillors to waive any 
conflict of interest they may have in their role as Councillor, thereby preventing them 
from participating in any decision making process in relation to the company. 

5.5 Given that eight of the ten current Executive Councillors hold directorships in the eight 
subsidiary companies, the practical exercising of Executive decision making in relation 
to all subsidiaries could be impacted upon. Although it is not necessarily inconsistent 
with best practice for an Executive Councillor to hold a directorship of this kind, 
consideration needs to be given as to whether the current level of Executive Councillor 
Directorships is appropriate. 

Page 18



 

 

5.6 The number of Executive Councillors serving on subsidiary boards also has 
implications for the effectiveness of the Companies Governance Executive Sub-
Committee. Three of the five current Councillor members are also directors of 
subsidiary companies. The Leader of the Council and Chair of the sub-committee also 
holds a directorship on the board of Blueprint, a non-subsidiary company limited by 
shares. The stated purpose of the Sub-Committee is; “to approve and oversee the 
Council's strategic objectives across the Nottingham City Council group of companies, 
and to support the development of the Group in line with the Council's regulations and 
ambitions”. 

5.7 It is possible to take the view that conflicts of interests may be resolved by individual 
Councillors abstaining from participating in decision making relating only to the 
company or companies on whose boards they serve. This does not however resolve 
conflicts arising from decisions which may impact the entire group. For example, 
decisions relating to reporting and performance management standards across the 
group, or the issuing of directives that apply to all subsidiaries. 

5.8 It is therefore appropriate that further consideration be given to Executive Councillors 
serving as members of subsidiary boards where the functions of the organisation in 
question falls within the remit of their portfolio of responsibilities. Consideration should 
also be given to the premise that if feasible no Executive Councillor, who is also a 
member of the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee, should serve on 
the board of a subsidiary company. 

5.9 Any subsequent changes to the Terms of Reference for the Companies Governance 
Executive Sub-Committee and/or Constitution will be presented to Council in due 
course and it is also anticipated that any subsequent changes to board membership 
will need to be implemented in a measured and orderly manner to avoid destabilising 
company boards. During this period the Leader of the Council and Executive 
Councillors should continue to exercise the rights and powers of shareholder or 
member. 

5.10 Consideration is being given to the relationship of the Procurement and 
Commissioning Executive Sub-Committee to NCC companies where contracts are 
awarded for the supply of services. This element of the review has not been 
concluded at this stage. 

6 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 
confidential information 

6.1 None. 

7 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 

7.1 A1 PIR Action Plan Amended 

7.2 Lawyers in Local Government Example Best Practice Codes 

7.3 UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 

7.4 Grant Thornton Review of Company Governance at Birmingham City Council 

7.5 Grant Thornton report on alternative service delivery models in local government.  

Page 19



 

 

8 External bodies 

 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) 

 Lawyers in Local Government (LLG) 

 The National Audit Office (NAO) 

 National Commission on the future of governance in the public sector 

 Norse Group 

 Bristol City Council 

 York City Council 

 South Holland District Council 

 Grant Thornton 

Page 20



 

 

Audit Committee – 18 December 2020 
 

Title of paper: ‘No Deal’ Brexit Planning (End of the EU Transition Period) 
Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Mel Barrett, Chief Executive  
Malcolm Townroe, Director for Legal 
and Governance   

Wards affected:  
All  
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

James Rhodes, Head of Analysis and Insight  
James.rhodes@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Paul Millward, Head of Resilience  
James Schrodel, Policy, Performance & Partnerships Team 
Manager 
Departmental Brexit Leads:  
Colin Monckton, Director of Strategy and Policy (S&R) 
Pete Mitchell, Head of Regulation (C&O) 
John Matravers, Service Manager Safeguarding (People’s) 
Paul Seddon, Director of Planning and Regeneration (D&G) 
Paul Haigh, Head of Social Care Provision (People’s) 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 That Audit Committee note and comment on the risks and mitigating action identified.  
 

 
1 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
1.1 There continues to be uncertainty around the UK securing a free trade agreement 

following the conclusion of the transition period on 31 December 2020. As such, it is 
necessary to ensure that the City Council understands the potential risks and that 
planning is underway to mitigate those risks where required. It should also be noted 
that there are risks of the transition period coming to an end with or without a free 
trade agreement in place. This paper seeks to present those risks for note and 
comment by Audit Committee. 

 
2 Background 
 
2.1 Audit committee considered an update on Brexit in January 2019 and Full Council 

considered a report 12 November 2018, both of which highlighted the potential 
implications in light of a ‘no deal’ scenario. It was agreed that service areas and 
projects be assessed to ensure that relevant risks are understood and that mitigating 
actions are in place. A deal was reached in the form of a withdrawal agreement and 
the UK entered into a transition period within which negotiations began on a free trade 
deal. The following outlines the context within which potential risks are now being 
considered and mitigated. 

 
National Context 
 

2.2 The United Kingdom left the European Union — now an economic and political 
partnership of 27 countries — on 31 January 2020 under the terms of a negotiated 
withdrawal deal, bringing to an end 47 years of British membership of the EU and the 
institutions that preceded it. A ‘transition period’ (keeping most pre-departure 
arrangements in place) ends on 31 December 2020. From 1 January 2021 the UK will 
leave the EU's Single Market and Customs Union to implement an independent trade 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

mailto:James.rhodes@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

 

policy, bringing major changes to trading arrangements between Britain and the 
continent and much of the rest of the world. 

 
2.3 Despite the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the deadline for the two sides to 

agree an extension to the transition period has now passed. If no trade deal has been 
agreed and ratified by the end of the year, then the UK faces the prospect of tariffs on 
exports to the EU. Reports in the press indicate that a number of self-imposed 
deadlines from both sides have now been missed. 

 
2.4 It appears that there is stalemate over key issues amid difficult negotiations over 

fisheries; limits on government subsidies to businesses and other competition issues; 
and on the governance of any trade deal that may be agreed. Relations were further 
negatively impacted by a UK Government plan to row back on the withdrawal 
agreement concerning arrangements for Northern Ireland, via the UK Internal Market 
(UKIM) Bill. On 1 October, the EU launched legal action against the UK over the UKIM 
Bill. On 10 November, the House of Lords (HoL) voted again to defeat the UKIM Bill. 
Peers voted overwhelmingly to remove a section of the Bill that would allow ministers 
to break international law - by 433 votes to 165. The Government said it would 
reinstate the clauses when the Bill returns to the House of Commons. 

 
2.5 The US elections saw Joe Biden become President-Elect. This could impact on UK-

EU and the UK-US negotiations. US President-Elect Joe Biden has previously been 
openly critical of the UKIM Bill, fearing it could lead to a hard border between Northern 
Ireland and the Republic of Ireland and undermine the peace process - and has 
warned this could be a deal-breaker for any US-UK trade deal. 

 
2.6 On trade, the UK is seeking an agreement similar to those the EU has done with 

countries such as Canada. Brussels stresses it has always been clear that the UK’s 
geographical proximity to the EU, and degree of economic integration with Europe, 
mean the same rules should not apply. 

 
2.7 The UK has had some success at rolling over existing EU trade deals. On 24 October, 

the UK and Japan formally signed a trade agreement, marking the UK’s first post-
Brexit deal. The deal, which was negotiated over the summer, will take effect from 1 
January 2021. In November it was reported that the UK and Canada have also locked 
in their existing trading relationship, and agreed to begin negotiating a new more 
ambitious trade deal as early as next year. However, the UK’s trade with Japan and 
Canada is much less valuable than trade with the EU. 

 
2.8 At the time of writing, press coverage was leaning towards it being unlikely that a deal 

will be made due to differences on either side. If a deal is agreed, it would need to be 
signed off by MPs in the UK and (assuming it is a ‘mixed’ deal) Parliaments across the 
EU before the end of the transition period (albeit there have also been suggestions 
that the EU may be willing to implement a provisional deal on 1 January with 
ratification to follow). The available time for this must now be running short. 

 
2.9 It is possible that UK-EU negotiations may not succeed. It is essential that Local 

Authorities, UK businesses, goods hauliers, and travellers prepare actively for the end 
of the transition period, since change is coming, whether an agreement is reached or 
not. Even if a trade deal is secured, the UK will still be leaving the customs union and 
single market. 

 

Page 22



 

 

2.10 Failure to secure a deal would see the two sides revert to basic international trading 
rules (WTO or, in the Government’s description, an ‘Australian’ style trade 
relationship). This would bring more trade friction, new tariffs and non-tariff barriers, 
and leave future ties in limbo. It would likely cause a significant and ongoing hit to the 
UK's economy, but also those of its closest continental neighbours — and in particular 
that of Ireland. This would have major implications for Nottingham. 

 
2.11 Departmental Leads were tasked with assessing the risks across relevant service 

areas and projects of a no free trade deal scenario. The risk assessment was carried 
out using the standard five by five risk assessment tool based on likelihood and impact 
(Figure 1). 

 
 
 Figure 1: Risk Assessment Tool 
 

 
 
2.12  A summary of the key risks is presented below (2.14) with a focus on those risks with 

a score of 12 or more. In general terms the risks of the transition period coming to an 
end and the UK not securing a free trade deal by the end of the year include:  

 
• Border Disruption (initial delays of goods and impact on supply chains) and the 

possibility businesses are not ready for new regulatory and administrative implications 
of trading with Europe 

• Disruption to Passengers  
• EU Nationals in the UK (requirement for EU nationals to apply for the settlement 

scheme by 30 June 2021) 
• Impact on utility providers through supply chain disruption of key parts – although no 

shortfall in supply is expected.   
• Increase in cost of fuel and food and disproportionate impact on Low Economic 

Groups 
• Potential reduction in choice of foods, especially fresh fruit and vegetables due to 

border delays 
• Maritime Security and Fishing rights – a key stumbling block 
• Potential for public disorder, although locally this is thought unlikely  
• Impact on law enforcement capability to tackle cross boarder issues due to breakdown 

in intelligence sharing  
• Continuity of Medical supply and medical products – although DHSC have 

implemented mitigating actions such as stockpiling where possible 
• Reciprocal healthcare arrangements will be impacted and people will potentially face 

increased insurance premiums abroad 
• Impact on Health and Social Care, particularly adult social care with the main risk 

being provider failure due to increased costs which has been compounded by the 

Page 23



 

 

response to Coronavirus (e.g. cost of backfilling workers who are self-isolating, PPE 
costs, etc.)  

• Economic impact (reduction in GDP, increased inflation, potential high cost of 
borrowing, etc.)  
 

2.13 It should be noted that some of these risks are still present with or without a free trade 
deal. 

 
Summary of Departmental Reviews of ‘No Deal’ Risks 

 
2.14 The highest priority risks (based on a score of 12 or above) are presented below:  
 

The Risk Action Taken Score 
(LxI) 

Dept. 

Impact of winter pressures/ Covid and possible 
workforce pressures in the NHS (Adult Social 
Care): The NHS has many EU nationals in their 
workforce and some may leave due to the future 
uncertainty and/or increased sickness rates due to 
COVID which may result in result in workforce 
shortages. Additionally the concurrent events of 
COVID second wave and seasonal winter 
pressures will increase demand within the acute 
setting. The knock-on effect is that there will 
potentially be increased demand and complexity 
for ASC due to reduced NHS support to citizens 
with health and care needs, including hospital 
discharge. 

ASC and NCC commissioning 
to escalate concerns / patterns 
of concerns to the NHS system 
immediately. 

(3x4) 
12 
 

P 

Shortage in the health and Care workforce  
(Commissioning and Procurement): Inability to 
recruit across sector both internal (ASC) and 
external providers (ASC/Housing/Substance 
Misuse) and/or increased absence through COVID.  

The workforce is monitored 
closely due to COVID and 
plans have been developed to 
manage risks as they arise this 
will be used over the next 6 
months to monitor and respond 
to change. Procurement and 
Commissioning colleagues 
issuing providers information 
regarding the EU settlement 
scheme application process. 
Local Home Care recruitment 
campaign in preparation for 
mid-January with national 
campaign January/February.   

(3x4) 
12 

S&R 

Disruption to PPE supply which has become 
critical due to COVID: Supply of PPE is disrupted 
and/or increased costs to purchase on the open 
market and lack of supply will stop colleagues 
being able to provide care to citizens 

Currently majority of supplies 
are coming from DHSC who 
state they have sufficient stock 
and supply chain to manage 
over 6 months. 
NCC stock at minimum of 60 
days based upon current 
usage so this will be 
maintained through DHSC and 
top up from local suppliers as 
needed. Rationing of PPE will 
be required in line with LRF 
protocols for extreme 

(3x4) 
12 

S&R 

Page 24



 

 

shortages – some non-care 
services may have to stop 

Personal data transfers to/from the EU 
(Information Governance): Once the UK leaves 
the EU its relationship with its former partners will 
change. The UK will become a ‘third country’ 
subject to different information governance rules 
than those applied to EU members.UK 
organisations will continue to be able to transfer 
data to EU countries because of the degree of 
alignment between data protection regimes. 
However, organisations in the EU will not be able 
to transfer data to the UK without potentially 
breaching the GDPR. EU based organisations will 
be unable (without breaching the GDPR) to 
transfer personal data to organisations in the UK. 
If a council system transfers personal data to/from 
the EU, potentially they are at risk of having to 
temporarily cease/shut down. 
Members of the public may suffer physical and/or 
financial hardship if systems are suspended due to 
personal data processing problems. 

Central government needs to 
secure from the EU an 
adequacy notice in respect of 
the UK. This will signify the 
level of personal data 
protection in the UK is 
equivalent to that in the EU 
data. And will mean data 
transference can proceed. 
 
NCC needs to review all 
systems/processes to identify 
those that involve data flowing 
to/from the EU.In the absence 
of an adequacy notice, NCC 
needs to ensure that all data 
flows to/from the EU are 
secured by appropriate 
‘safeguards’ as defined by the 
GDPR. 

(3x4) 
12 

S&R 

Information sharing agreements, contracts and 
processing agreements may refer to old data 
protection legislation: Information sharing 
agreements, contracts and processing agreements 
may refer to old data protection legislation. This is 
due to the fact that the UK GDPR will come in to 
force which is essentially the EU GDPR as 
amended by section 3 of the European Union 
(Withdrawal) Act 2018. Therefore all the types of 
agreements will need review and may need to be 
amended. If agreements refer to old legislation 
they will not be robust in terms of data protection. 
All types of such documents to be reviewed 

A review to take place across 
the Council and advice given 
to Departments to check that 
the data protection clauses are 
up to date and to take in to 
account the change in the law 
from 1 Jan 2021. 

(4x3) 
12 

S&R 

Customs/Travel Delays (Planning & 
Regeneration): Materials shortage and possible 
delays in construction. Could impact on any 
construction project.  

Maintain dialogue with 
construction sector.  Flexibility 
through planning process for 
alternatives. Developers aware 
and will seek to mitigate. 
Pandemic Lockdown has 
tested supply chains. 

(4X3) 
12 

D&G 

Supply Chain Impacts (Planning & 
Regeneration): Increase in costs and delays in 
project delivery (as above). 

Maintain dialogue with 
construction sector.   

(3X4) 
12 

D&G 

Development Industry Confidence Falls 
(Planning & Regeneration): Decline in 
Fees/Planning Applications & Building Control 
leading to budgetary pressures 

Maintain business friendly 
approach.  Continue to closely 
monitor fee income. 

(4x3) 
12 

D&G 

Economic downturn  (Economic Development): 
Increased unemployment and increased business 
failure resulting in increased demand for 
employment and business support and increased 
poverty/deprivation and increased demand for 
services. 
 

Economic recovery plan to be 
launched for consultation in 
December. 
Ongoing monitoring of 
economic situation. 
Sustaining Nottingham jobs 
and growth hub to ensure 
ongoing support for both job 

(4X3) 
12 

D&G 

Page 25



 

 

seekers and businesses. 
Develop and implement 
redundancy support process 
through Nottingham Jobs. 

Customs/Travel Delays (Traffic and Transport): 
A shortage and increased costs of materials and 
supplies for delivering services and projects. 
Delays in construction and delivery of projects; 
Increased costs resulting in budget pressures 

Review procurement strategy 
to ensure that an option for 
sourcing from the UK or non-
EU country exists, if that is 
more economically viable. 

(3X4) 
12 

D&G 

Supply Chain Impacts (Traffic and Transport): 
A disruption to business supply chains affecting 
availability of materials and supplies for services 
and projects. Delays in construction and delivery of 
projects; Increased costs resulting in budget 
pressures 

Review procurement strategy 
to ensure that an option for 
sourcing from the UK or non-
EU country exists, if that is 
more economically viable. 

(3X4) 
12 

D&G 

Increases in inflation -Private Finance 
Initiatives (PFI) (Major Projects): Inflation 
increases either due to general supply / demand 
issues or as a result of currency fluctuations. Most 
PFI contracts are inflated annually by RPIx, 
however grants are not.  D&G have six PFI 
contracts that are jointly funded by government 
grants and by the Council. Any increases in 
inflation at key times will lead to an increased 
payment to the contractor, irrespective of whether 
or not they have suffered a cost increase 
themselves. This increase will create a funding gap 
that will need to be met from council budgets. This 
will cause an additional pressure within the 
Council, which will also be in effect locked in and 
compounded for the duration of the contract. 

Cannot be mitigated through 
the PFI contracts. 

(4X3) 
12 

D&G 

 
Status of Emergency Planning with regard to end of EU transition period  

 
2.15 Planning for a No Deal Brexit after the transition period from an emergency planning 

perspective is occurring both within (i) the Council and, (ii) with partners within the 
Local Resilience Forum (LRF) framework. Both approaches to planning are designed 
to fit in with Government expectations for information, reporting and dissemination of 
advice, and ‘command, control and coordination (C3)’.  

 
2.16 The LRF’s Strategic Coordinating Group (SCG) is meeting weekly to consider the 

Response to, and Recovery from, the current COVID-19 pandemic. The SCG has met 
over 40 times since February and have created and managed various Response cells 
to deal with issues arising from the pandemic. In addition, since October, the SCG 
converted to an “All Hazards” SCG and now considers, alongside COVID-19, the end 
of the EU transition period and other possible ‘concurrent emergencies’ (e.g. flooding, 
mass evacuation etc.). 

 
 

(i) Emergency planning within the Council 
 
2.17 The Council has reformed its Brexit Officer Working Group (BOWG) under the Director 

for Legal and Governance to ensure that all Departments can demonstrate assurance 
that the risks of the ending of the transition period without a deal were understood 
alongside the national mitigation that may be contained in the Reasonable Worst case 

Page 26



 

 

Scenarios (RWCS). The BOWG consists of at least one designated Lead from each 
department (ensuring visibility of areas with specific risks) and has representatives 
from Analysis and Insight, Communication and Marketing and Emergency Planning 
also in attendance. BOWG, if necessary, will report to the council’s Senior Resilience 
Group (which consists of a Director in each department responsible for Emergency 
Planning in their department) and CLT. Each Departmental DLT has been asked to 
have a standing item relating to the ending of the EU transitional period. 

 
 2.18 The BOWG has revisited the previous Risk Register and considered those risks, 

previously identified, alongside the latest RWCS. The highest level risks are shown 
above in this report. 

 
2.19 In 2018 and 2019 BOWG put in place a Strategic and Tactical reporting structure, for 

the ‘planning’ and the ‘response’ phases and the Council’s Strategic lead within the 
LRF. If necessary, these will be stood up again by the end of the transition period. All 
arrangements/approaches will be scalable and flexible as events unfold. 

 
2.20 The Senior Resilience Group Director representatives will be accountable for 

overseeing Brexit transition arrangements within their Departments.  
 

Emergency Planning with the Local Resilience Forum 
 
2.21 The Local Resilience Forum is the county-wide body that is charged with the 

responsibility for emergency planning within Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, in line 
with the duties set out in the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. However, the legal duty to 
plan for emergencies remains with the Council (and other individual organisations in 
the LRF). It consists of all the major public sector organisation that may have a role in 
responding to a wide range of major emergencies, notably, all local authorities, NHS 
England (including all hospitals, Acute trusts etc.), Environment Agency, Emergency 
Services, Highways Agency, Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government, HM Coroner, Met Office, together with all the major Utilities, Voluntary 
organisations, Military etc. The LRF is jointly administered by the City Council and the 
council also jointly chairs the main Resilience Working Group (RWG) for the LRF 
Executive. 

 
2.22 The City Council is represented at the LRF Executive by the Director for Legal and 

Governance. The Head of Resilience is joint chair of the RWG and acts as the joint 
LRF Director/Secretariat. 

 
2.23 There are two distinct phases to the end of the EU transition period for the LRF but 

with an overall requirement for reporting to Government during both phases. The two 
phases are a) Before 31 December (the ‘Planning phase’) when the LRF will play a 
‘watching, advising, coordinating and reporting role’ but with individual organisations 
taking the lead in preparing their own organisation for the effects of the end of the 
transition period, and b) 1 January (the ‘Response phase’) when the LRF network and 
structures will be used to co-ordinate county-wide (and regional or national) responses 
to issues which require a multi-agency approach. Whilst the end of the EU transition 
period is not considered by the Government to be a ‘Civil Contingencies’ emergency, 
the structures and partnerships that have been developed to deal with natural and 
person-made emergencies are considered by Government to be the best way of 
addressing any issues. The proposed structures and forms of reporting are, therefore, 
modelled on existing LRF arrangements and techniques. 

 

Page 27



 

 

2.24 The LRF has agreed that, whilst the LRF structures forms a very useful way for 
Government to engage organisations in preparing for a the end of the transition 
period, it is primarily for each organisation to consider the Government’s latest 
Reasonable Worst Case Scenarios, and, largely, make their own business continuity 
preparations for the consequences of a no deal after the transition period has ended. 
However, it also agreed that if any organisation in the LRF partnership considered that 
a multi-agency approach was required by their organisation in preparation for the end 
of the transition period, they should advise the LRF Secretariat accordingly or use the 
informal network of partners established by the LRF. 

 
‘Reporting regime’ and ‘command and control’ 
 

2.25 The Government have indicated, via the Local Resilience Forum network, that it will 
expect a ‘reporting regime’ before and after 1 January as to the overall local situation. 
Unlike previous similar reporting regimes, it is expected that this one will be ‘light 
touch’ and, after the initial overall assessment, it will be reporting by exception only. 
However, if issues arise after 1 January, it is expected that the usual full reporting 
mechanisms will be required. The LRF have designated an overall coordinator of this 
information (from Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service) but each organisation will 
be responsible for supplying its own ‘Agency’ report to inform the overall LRF position.   

 
2.26 As noted above the end of the EU transition period is considered by the LRF’s SCG 

meeting each week. No county wide issues have been raised to date. 
 
2.27 It is likely that some organisations within the LRF will be required to report both to their 

‘home’ Government department as well as to the LRF locally although this will be kept 
to a minimum.  

 
3 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 

confidential information 
 
3.1 None  
 
4 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
4.1 No Deal Brexit Planning, Audit Committee, January 2019  

Brexit Update, Report of the Chair of Audit Committee, Nottingham City Council, 12 
November 2018 

Page 28

http://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/documents/s79574/Brexit%20Update.pdf


Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Work Programme and Action Log
	5 Report in the Public Interest - Appointment of Councillor Directors
	6 'No Deal' Brexit Planning
	8 Exempt Minutes

